ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWMM TTEE
April 7, 2015

9:02 a.m
VEMBERS PRESENT
Senator Bill Stoltze, Chair
Senat or John Coghill, Vice Chair
Senator Charlie Huggi ns
Senator Bill W el echowski

VEMBERS ABSENT
Senator Lesil MCuire
COWMM TTEE CALENDAR

COWM TTEE SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BILL NO 93(STA
"An Act relating to the duties of probation officers; and
relating to conditions of parole.™

- MOVED CSHB 93( STA) QUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 62

"An Act relating to the regulation of nmarijuana, nmarijuana
testing, marijuana products, and narijuana accessories; relating
to the licensing of marijuana retailers, producers, processors,
bouti que producers, brokers, and home growers; relating to
taxation of marijuana; and providing for an effective date.”

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 93

SHORT TI TLE: PROBATI ON AND PAROLE: WORK, TRAVEL ACCOM
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) TILTON

01/ 30/ 15 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

01/ 30/ 15 (H) STA

02/ 17/ 15 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 17/ 15 (H) Moved CSHB 93(STA) Qut of Committee
02/ 17/ 15 (H) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 19/ 15 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 19/ 15 (H) Moved CSHB 93(STA) Qut of Committee
02/ 19/ 15 (H) M NUTE( STA)

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- April 7, 2015



02/ 20/ 15 (H) STA RPT CS(STA) 5DP

02/ 20/ 15 (H) DP: TALERI CO, STUTES, KELLER KREI SS-
TOVKI NS, LYNN

02/ 27/ 15 (H) TRANSM TTED TO (S)

02/ 27/ 15 (H VERSI ON:  CSHB 93( STA)

03/ 02/ 15 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

03/ 02/ 15 (S) STA, JUD

03/ 26/ 15 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

03/ 26/ 15 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 26/ 15 (S) M NUTE( STA)

BILL: SB 62

SHORT TITLE: REGULATI ON OF MARI JUANA BUSI NESSES; BOARD
SPONSOR(s): JUDI Cl ARY

02/ 25/ 15 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
02/ 25/ 15 (S) STA, L&C, FIN

03/ 05/ 15 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 05/ 15 (S) Heard & Held

03/ 05/ 15 (S) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 10/ 15 (S) STA AT 8: 30 AM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 10/ 15 (S) Heard & Held

03/ 10/ 15 (S) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 12/ 15 (S) STA AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 12/ 15 (S Schedul ed but Not Heard

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE CATHY TI LTON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: HB 93 sponsor.

COW SSI ONER RONALD TAYLOR

Al aska Departnent of Corrections

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ai ned probation and parol e gui del i nes.

CHAD HUTCHI NSQN, St aff

Senat or John Coghi | |

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PGSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded an overvi ew of SB 62.

JESSE LOGAN, St aff

Senator MCGuire
Al aska State Legislature

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- April 7, 2015



Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded an overvi ew of SB 62.

KEN ALPER, Director

Tax Division

Al aska Departnent of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on marijuana tax regulations and
proj ected revenues.

CHRI S HLADI CK, Comm ssi oner

Depart ment of Commrerce, Conmunity, and Econonic Devel opnent
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addressed questions regarding SB 62 and
marij uana regul ations.

CYNTHI A FRANKLI N, Director

Al cohol i ¢ Beverage Control Board

Depart ment of Comrerce, Conmunity, and Econoni c Devel opnent
Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addressed marijuana |icensing procedures for
public notice.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

9:02: 53 AM

CHAIR BILL STOLTZE called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 9:02 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Coghill, Huggins, and Chair Stoltze.

HB 93- PROBATI ON AND PARCLE: WORK, TRAVEL ACCOM

9:03: 08 AM
CHAIR STOLTZE announced the consideration of HB 93. [CSHB
93(STA) was before the conmttee.]

9:03: 42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CATHY TILTON, Al aska State Legislature, Juneau,
Al aska, explained that HB 93 is a piece of ongoing |egislation
on the refornms on the crimnal justice system She specified
that the legislation tells the parole officer to look at the
enpl oyment of a probationer when considering nmaking their
probati on appoi ntnents. She noted that enploynent is one of the
maj or things that keeps probationers from recidivating. She
added that enploynent allows probationers to pay restitution to
their victinms and back to the state.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- April 7, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE TILTON said Chairman Stoltze asked her at the
previous neeting if parole was a qualified privilege or right.
She asserted that in no way does she believe parole is a right
and insisted that parole is a qualified privilege.

She noted that Senator Coghill had questioned the word
"diligent,” which is used throughout the bill. She noted that
she had | ooked up the word "diligent" in Black's Law Dictionary
and it is defined as, "Careful and attentive, being persistent
in doing something industrious and assiduous carried out wth
care and constant effort.” She noted that "diligent" is used 29
times in statute. She said the word "active" is used 209 tines
in statute, but the wrd is not defined in Black's Law
Dictionary. She surmised that "diligent" presumes "active," but
"active" does not presune "diligent."

9:06: 29 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOAWEKI j oi ned the conmttee neeting.

REPRESENTATIVE TILTON noted that a question was asked in the
previous neeting regarding the use of the word "shall" when used
in context with requiring a parole officer to grant a travel
pass for a probationer. She revealed that Chairman Stoltze's
office received a legal neno from Legal Services; subject:
Granting of a Travel Pass, date: April 6, 2015. She sumarized
that Legal Services was asked whether Section 1 of CSHB 93( STA)
on page 2, lines 12-14, could create a situation where the
probation officer my be conpelled to grant a person on
probation a travel pass. She explained Legal Service's "brief
answer" as foll ows:

Only if the travel is not inconsistent wth other
terms of probation set by the court, a probation
officer likely maintains the discretion to decline

travel in nost circunstances, and can always seek the
court's guidance to resolve cl ose questions.

CHAI R STOLTZE noted that there is a place for tribal entities in
the state's justice system at least on a limted level. He
asked how a request is weighed when a village asks that an
i ndi vi dual not be allowed to return.

9:08: 02 AM

COWM SSI ONER RONALD TAYLOR, Al aska Departnent of Corrections,
Anchorage, Alaska, replied that the Departnment of Corrections
(DOC) currently weighs all of the factors by |ooking at the

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- April 7, 2015



conditions of probation and parole to decide if a person could

travel. He said HB 93 will allow the probation officer to give a
nore careful ook at ensuring that an individual's work is not
interfering with their duties to fulfill their requirenents for

probation or parole. He said DOC s goal is to nake sure that the
person is working, but in those cases where the comrunity has
said, "W don't want them to cone back to our comunity," that
certainly is going to be taken into account and restrictions

wll be invoked. He added that the court or the parole boards
t hensel ves will add restrictions as part of the trave
requi renment where the individual wll be refrained from going

into a comunity, unless their required treatnent has been
conpl et ed.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked if DOC s relationship and procedures with a
probationer or parolee is formalized in nmanuals regarding the
di scussion and negotiation with where an individual is from

COWM SSI ONER TAYLOR answered that the conditions thenselves are
the formal thing that dictate DOC s authority on whether or not
a person will be allowed back into their conmunity. He specified
that there are issues when a probation officer has to nake a
j udgenent call and the decision has to be articulated. He noted
that a probationer or parolee can go to the court or parole
board and request that their case be revi ewed.

CHAIR STOLTZE noted that a group in the Mt-Su Borough called
"Stop Valley Thieves" has a website wth over 9,000 nenbers. He
noted that the group is very active in the pursuit and
adm nistration of justice. He added that the group has very
active | eaders who are very well versed in Article 1, Section 24
on victims rights. He asked Representative Tilton if she had
any interaction with the Stop Valley Thieves group on the issue
of probation and restorative justice.

9:10: 57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE TILTON answered that she has had sone discussion
with Ms. Wallner, the person that started the group, in regards
to HB 93.

She reiterated Chair Stoltze's question if parole and probation
was a qualified privilege or a right. She asserted that parole
and probation are a qualified privilege. She specified that
under conditions of probation that are warranted, the intent is
to keep probationers enployed, have an individual go back into
society, and to pay restitution to maybe hel p victins heal.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- April 7, 2015



CHAIR STOLTZE noted that Representative Tilton addressed,
"allowing restitution.” He asked if restitution should be
required.

REPRESENTATI VE TILTON replied that "required® would be a better
wor d.

9:12: 33 AM
At ease.

9:12: 53 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE called the commttee back to order.

9:13: 05 AM
SENATOR HUGGE NS noved to report CSHB 93(STA), from conmittee
wi th individual recomrendati ons and attached fiscal note(s).

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI stated that he wanted to put on the record
that the court may |ook soneday for what the Legislature's

intent in passing the bill was and noted that his intent is that
he is relying on the Legal Service's opinion, dated April 6,
2015, where it says, "A probation officer likely naintains the
di scretion to decline travel in npbst circunstances and can

al ways seek the court's guidance to resolve close questions.” He
specified that his intent in passing HB 93 is that the
di scretion remains with the probation officer and in close cases
there should be due discretion given to the probation officer in
determ ning whether or not he or she thinks the specified case
may not necessarily be a good idea to have the probationer
travel

9:14: 07 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE concurred wth Senator Welechowski that the
opinion from Legal Services beconmes part of the |egislative
record for the State Affairs Commttee. He announced that seeing
no objection, CSHB 93(STA) noves from Senate State Affairs
St andi ng Comm ttee.

9:14: 34 AM
At ease.

SB 62- REGULATI ON OF MARI JUANA BUSI NESSES; BQOARD

9:16: 22 AM
CHAIR STOLTZE called the commttee back to order and announced
t he consi derati on of SB 62.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- April 7, 2015



9:16:40 AM
CHAD HUTCHI NSON, Staff, Senator John Coghill, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, Juneau, Al aska, introduced hinself.

JESSE LOGAN, Staff, Senator Lesil MeQuire, Al aska State
Legi sl ature, Juneau, Al aska, introduced hinself.

MR. HUTCHI NSON said SB 62 is the regulatory bill for marijuana
busi nesses. He noted that Senator MQ@ire has a heightened
interest in sone of the provisions and discussions as it relates
to advertising, Ilabeling, serving size, and packaging. He
remarked that the issues previously noted have been nentioned
constantly in other bills.

MR. LOGAN expl ai ned that based on various discussions and fl oor
debate on SB 30, mmjor areas of interest were identified and
addr essed. He specified that mar keting and adverti sing,
packagi ng of products, labeling, and serving size of edible
marijuana were |ooked at. He detailed that brief excerpts were
taken from the issues that SB 62 addressed and conpared agai nst
recomrendati ons made from the Alaska State Medical Association
(ASMA) and the Col orado Task Force Report on the Inplenmentation
of Amendnent 64. He specified that Anendnent 64 is the
constitutional amendnent that |egalized marijuana in Col orado.
He added that the sone of the recommendations nade by the
Col orado Task Force (CTF) were not fully inplenented and sone of
the state's actual laws will differ fromthe recommendati ons.

9:18:36 AM

He addressed "Marketing and Advertising of Marijuana, Marijuana
Products, and Marijuana Accessories.” He said in SB 62, Section
17.38.075 states that nmarijuana nmay not be advertised or
marketed in a manner enticing to mnors. He stated that the
section relating to mnors was the nost inportant provision of
the marijuana advertising allowables. He said ASMA simlarly
recommended that products are ensured to not be advertised or
mar keted directly to those under 21 years of age. He specified
that ASMA recommended allowances for in-store advertising,
publically visible advertising, web-based advertising, etc. He
revealed that the bill's sponsors are awaiting |egal opinion on
the extent to restrictions that can be placed on advertising and
marketing relating to the First Amendnent.

MR. LOGAN revealed that CTF recomended that the |egislature
should provide certain guidelines on a state level, but allow
for further limtations at a |local level. He detail ed additional
CTF mar keting reconmendati ons as foll ows:

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- April 7, 2015



e Prohibit nmass nmarketing canpaigns that have a high
i kelihood of reaching children: television, radio, and
direct mail.

e Prohibit health or physical benefit claimns.

 Allow for "opt in" marketing prograns such as e-mail cl ubs.

 Allow marijuana to be offered in retail stores only and not
allow for regular non-nmarijuana products to be sold as
wel | ; exanple, a soda could not be purchased at a marijuana
retail store.

e Allow for "opt in" based l|location services; exanple, text
messagi ng on nobil e devices.

e Prohibit unsolicited pop-up ads on the internet and only
allow advertising banners on adult orientated websites.
Advertising on websites such as Facebook where mnors use
woul d not be al |l owed.

Al ow marijuana retailers to host their own websites.

9:21:07 AM

He addressed "Packagi ng Requirenents for Marijuana and Marijuana
Products.” He noted that Col orado and Washington vary in their
approaches to packaging. He explained that SB 62 allows the
control board to adopt regulations regarding packaging and
| abeling, which was in Ballot Measure 2. He noted that SB 62
specifies that nmarijuana products can only exit the retai
establishments in a child-proof container. He added that a
wor di ng change to the bill was advised where child-proof should
be changed to child-resistant.

He revealed that ASMA had simlar recommendations that products
are ensured to not be packaged or marketed to entice or attract
chi | dren. He pointed out t hat ASVMA vacillated between
i dentifying people under 21 or children. He added that there was
confusion on the difference between marketing to someone who is
age 20 versus age 21, so SB 62 stuck with the definition of
"mnor." He said ASMA al so recommended that marijuana should be
prohi bited from packaging that appears famliar, e.g. anything
that | ooks |like a normal product |ike a candy bar or a soda.

He explained that CTF recommended that packaging in Col orado be
addressed in three ways: packaging by the manufacturer that
neets certain standards set by the control board, packaging by
the retail establishnment's operator prior to the point of sale,
or the use of an exit shopping bag or container with a child-
resistant | ock. He reveal ed that Colorado decided to go with the
child-resistant shopping bag or container. He added that an

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- April 7, 2015



opaque rather than a clear child-resistant bag was recomended.
He noted that the intent was to add |anguage pertaining to an
opaque child-resistant bag in the drafting of Section C1 of AS
17.38.090, but the drafting created sone confusing |anguage. He
said a variety of different |anguages were considered as to how
to inplenment an exit-bag in statute. He set forth that an
overall definition for an exit-bag woul d be:

A child-resistant package which neets all of the
requi renents and definition of child-resistance in the
American Society for Testing and Mterials (ASTM
standards. If the package is not for one-use, then the
package should be re-closable and when closed should
nmeet the sane ASTM st andards.

VR. LOGAN summarized that an exit-bag would provide a
conceal able way to exit and transport marijuana so that children
are not enticed or cannot view the marijuana.

9:24: 01 AM

He addressed | abeling for marijuana and said there are a variety
of safety factors to consider. He referenced inage exanples of
| abeling used in Colorado and Washington. He said SB 62 states
t he foll ow ng:

A contai ner nmust be packaged and clearly |abeled with
the contents, it may not have pictures or other
representations that would be enticing to mnors, and
it should be labeled for potency and a certification
of safety. The certification of safety would be done
by a testing lab certified by the Al aska Departnent of
Envi ronment Conservati on (DEC)

He said ASMA recommended that I|abeling should show the
fol | ow ng:

* Tet rahydr ocannabi nol (THC) content.

* Nunber of servings contained in edible products.

* Warni ngs that the product contains marijuana.

e Marijuana potency.

e Warning simlar to tobacco for use while pregnant.

MR. LOGAN said CTF recommended |abeling should show the
fol | ow ng:

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- April 7, 2015



e Total content of THC by weight or a mlligram dose of
active THC in the total THC for edi bl es.

e Listing of pesticides, herbicides, fungicides, and solvents
that were used in the cultivation of processing.

He added that all testing for labeling requirenents is assuned
to be done by a laboratory certified by DEC

He addressed "Serving Size and Packaging of Edible Mrijuana
Products.” He said there was recent debate on edible serving
sizes. He said SB 62 specifies that individual THC doses cannot
be nore than 10 mlligrans. He pointed out that sone people are
interested in lowering the individual dose threshold. He added
that SB 62 recommends that each edible dose be wapped
i ndividually, but marijuana packages could be sold with nmultiple
doses inside. He noted that ASMA recomended the follow ng for
serving size and packaging for edi ble marijuana products:

* Require edible products to be stanped or shaped into
di stinct and easily recogni zabl e ways.

» Labeled for THC content, nunber of servings, and a warning
that the product contains narij uana.

He said CIF had a variety of serving size and packaging
recommendations that are very simlar to the recomendations
made in SB 62. He specified CTF s recomendati ons as foll ows:

* Appropriate limtations on THC

e Amount of servings in a dose should be set at 10
mlligrans.

e Serving size clearly | abel ed on the package.

He explained that the intent for smaller serving sizes,
| abel i ng, and packaging requirenents is to get at the
possibility for over consum ng THC.

9:27:16 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE noted that ASMA had sonme things that were even
nore inportant that were not nentioned. He pointed out that ASMA
made recommendations for strict testing requirenents, strict
liability in identifying responsibility, and requirenents for
i nsurance and bonding. He asked if the three inportant itens
dismssed in the presentation will be addressed by the Senate
Judiciary Comm ttee.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- April 7, 2015



MR. LOGAN answered that the Senate Judiciary Committee will be
happy to address the itens noted by Chair Stoltze.

CHAI R STOLTZE renarked that the three ASMA recommendati ons that
were not nmentioned in M. Logan's presentation are three of the
nmost i nportant features for the public's protection. He asserted
that there nust be an assurance that dosages are accurate, the
product is safe when conpared to other regulated drugs, and
ltability nust be addressed for litigious reasons. He remarked
that he questioned the public's protection w thout a bonding or
i nsurance requirenent.

9:28:56 AM

MR. HUTCHI NSON replied that SB 62 does touch on the testing and
certification process for the nmarijuana testing facilities. He
said the bill's sponsors are open to suggestions to better
articul ate the | anguage.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked that bondi ng and i nsurance be addressed.

MR. LOGAN answered that bonding and insurance were not addressed
inthe bill.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI recommended that Legal Services be
contacted to address the possible interplay of rmarijuana
| abeling regarding pesticides, herbicides, and fungicides. He
noted that the U S. Supreme Court ruled in a case that the
Federal Insecticide, Fungicide and Rodenticide Act (FIFRA)
preenpts inconsistent rules on | abeling.

9: 30: 05 AM
SENATOR COCGHI LL asked to confirm that the state would have to
initially use out-of-state testing.

MR. HUTCHI NSON answer ed yes.

SENATOR COGHILL remarked that certification is going to be at
| east problematic due to a lag in time and expense. He asked if
the logistics with out-of-state testing has been | ooked at.

MR. LOGAN answered that his wunderstanding is the Interstate
Commerce Clause would be violated if recreational marijuana is
sent out-of-state. He revealed that a few private conpanies are
interested in establishing testing facilities in Al aska.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- April 7, 2015



SENATOR COGHI LL remarked that out-of-state testing would be one
of the industry barriers where the state makes requirenents that
the industry will have to figure out how to conply.

CHAIR STOLTZE opined that testing is a barrier that DEC has
pretty nuch been hands-off on. He remarked that DEC testified
that they are not going to receive any assistance from federal

agencies on how to regulate an illegal substance. He said DEC
will have to clarify what their statutory testing involvenent
will be and set up testing requirenents to bring in an out-of-

state entity. He pointed out that the initiative' s sponsors have
testified that they want to self-regulate and test in-house with
their own testing conpanies. He asserted that addressing testing
regul ati ons has been all over the map. He remarked that he does
not know if a product can be guaranteed as safe, but informng
the public what is in a product can be guaranteed.

MR. LOGAN explained that testing facilities were addressed in SB
62 and certification for facilities would be done by DEC He
said the testing facilities can test for a wde variety of
t hings, but safety is probably the nost inportant one.

CHAI R STOLTZE commented that the Department of Labor should be
involved due to possible workers' conpensation issues. He
remarked that he does not know how dangerous testing marijuana
is.

9:32: 50 AM

SENATOR HUGA NS asked what will be used for narijuana to keep
kids from being able to have access nmarijuana when they are
unsupervi sed at hone.

MR. LOGAN responded that child-resistant exit-bags was the
solution that Colorado cane to. He noted that simlar to pil
bottles, child resistant exit-bags will not work for children
over 10 years of age.

SENATOR HUGEA NS asked if there have been cases in Col orado or
Washi ngton where chil d-resistant bags did not work.

MR. HUTCHI NSON reveal ed that Colorado and Washi ngton have seen
an increase in energency room visits due to children ingesting
marijuana. He said the states are |ooking at funding a canpaign
to educate parents. He said child-resistant packaging is one
issue that SB 62 is trying to address.

9:34:45 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- April 7, 2015



At ease.

9:35: 27 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE called the commttee back to order.

9: 35:36 AM
KEN ALPER, Director, Tax Division, Al aska Departnent of Revenue,
Juneau, Al aska, introduced hinself.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked for an overview of the state's tax regine on
the nmarijuana legislation as defined by the initiative. He
inquired what net gain the state can expect in the comng fisca
year and the years after.

MR. ALPER replied that the Departnent of Revenue (DOR) provided
a fiscal note on tax revenue that projects a range of $5 nmillion
to $17 mllion with a md-line nunber of $12 mllion for FY17
He specified that tax collections are anticipated to start the
first nmonth of FY17 in July 2016. He detailed that in 2016, the
first licenses are expected to be issued in May, the first |egal
sales roughly in June, and the first tax collection to occur in
July.

He revealed that the marijuana consunption projections were
based on academic studies and poling. He opined that the data
acquired from poling nay be inherently flawed because people are
not honestly answering if they consune nmarijuana. He added that
calculating marijuana consunption also involves projecting the
proportion of people who will buy legal marijuana versus the
bl ack market. He remarked that people converting from the black
market to the legal market is going to be dependent on the
actions taken in the Legislature.

He detailed that maximzing marijuana's "legal unbrella size"

will depend on legislation that nakes it easier to conform get
a license, and meking sure that taxes create the chain of
custody in the regulatory oversight that wll enable adequate

| aw enf or cenent .

He said the tax disposition is anticipated to be regulated and

enforced the way alcohol is. He explained that half of all
al cohol taxes are diverted to dependency prograns. He detailed
that $40 mllion in alcohol taxes come into the state every year

with $20 million going to the nental health budget and $20
mllion going to the general fund. He explained that the
entirety of the $50 an ounce narijuana whol esale tax would go to

SENATE STA COW TTEE -13- April 7, 2015



t he general fund; however, the eventual witing of that would be
up to the will of the Legislature.

9:38: 43 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE asked if M. Alper neant the will of the people.

MR. ALPER answered yes. He specified that tax |aws, details, and
maki ng sure all of the pieces fit together is nost certainly the
responsi bility of the Legislature.

CHAIR STOLTZE replied that he wanted to confirm that M. Al per
said success is dependent on the Legislature. He asserted that
M. Apler's budget subm ssion is a panacea.

SENATOR COGHILL noted that a lingering question with |egislators
addresses cash and how transactions will be brought in. He said
currently the banking industry is not willing to step up. He
asked i f DOR has addressed tax paynents nmade with cash

MR. ALPER answered that DOR has addressed tax paynents wth
cash. He specified that DOR has decided not to take any steps
until the legislation has been reviewed after the session. He
noted that Colorado collected $65 mllion in their first
cal endar year through marijuana excise and sales taxes. He
reveal ed that 40 percent of Colorado's tax paynments were brought
to their front-door via cash. He said the departnment wll have
to consider security nmeasures such as safes, arnored cars, and
security guards due to the possibly of dealing with cash.

9:40: 47 AM
CHAIR STOLTZE asked if DOR has projected the fiscal inpact from
the safety neasures due to cash tax paynents.

MR. ALPER answered that DOR has not. He said DOR hopes that the
tax paynments do not cone down to paying with cash. He asserted
that cash paynents are dependent on the federal governnment. He
noted that a bank in Colorado is trying to receive approval from
the federal governnent to allow interbank transfers. He said al
of the banking problenms would go away if the federal governnent
relents and lets sone degree of marijuana industry banking. He
admtted that current banking regulations for marijuana is in a
gray- area.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if DOR is working with any institutions to
resol ve the cash i ssues.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- April 7, 2015



MR. ALPER answered no. He reiterated that the departnent is
waiting to see the legislation and then begin a fairly robust
regul atory process during the summer that will include reaching
out to the banking and cash handling industry.

SENATOR COGHI LL addressed Section 29 in the bill and asked to
confirm that licensing is tied to accountability where excise
taxes are reported through a statenent subm ssion and
enforcenment is done through maintaining a |license.

9:42: 32 AM

MR. ALPER answered that the concept fits into what Col orado has
described as the seed-to-sale chain of custody where the
marijuana is tracked to see where it is and where it cones from
He specified that the reporting process identifies whether
marijuana was purchased from a licensed grower. He noted that
DOR has submtted expanded and proposed |anguage that wll
increase the departnent's ability to track narijuana, enforce
taxes, and identify people who mght be selling unlicensed
mar i j uana.

SENATOR HUGE NS asked if illegal marijuana from Mexico that was
confiscated woul d be auctioned of f for tax purposes.

MR. ALPER answered that scenario that Senator Huggins described
is hard to envision where the state is involved. He surm sed
that federal or local officials would be involved with illega
contraband and the marijuana would ultinmately be destroyed. He
said the Alaskan marijuana growing conmunity is going to try to
establish thenselves as the source for Alaska's marijuana
consuners. He specified that DOR s concern is that wunlicensed
marijuana grown in Alaska is sold by a retailer or processor.

9:45: 48 AM

CHRI'S HLADI CK, Comm ssioner, Alaska Department of Comrerce,
Community, and Economi c Developnent (DCCED), Juneau, Al aska,
stated that he is not aware of any insurance conpanies that are
interested in being involved with the marijuana industry. He

noted that he wll find out if any bonding conpanies are
involved with the marijuana industry. He asserted that |egalized
marij uana has many questions surrounding it and will continue to

have many questions for many years.

CHAIR STOLTZE remarked that w thout insurance there would be,
for exanple, no aviation or seafood industries. He detailed that
insurance is a fabric of a societal conpact on sharing risk. He
asked if the insurance issue is solvable within the next year.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 15- April 7, 2015



9:47: 04 AM

COWM SSI ONER  HLADI CK  answered that he does not know what
Colorado is doing, but DCCED will work wth the insurance
industry. He agreed that insurance is extrenely inportant.

CHAI R STOLTZE said the legal sector is not ready for a genera
imunity for the marijuana industry. He pointed out that a
liquor store has certain requirenments from a nunicipality and
the initiative specifies regulation |ike alcohol. He asked how
the public wll be protected if marijuana exists. He asserted
that the assignnent of risk and responsibility will not change.

COWM SSI ONER HLADI CK answered that the insurance aspect wll
have to be figured out because nunicipalities will face the sane
i ssue.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked if Comm ssioner H adick received input from
muni ci palities regarding their half of marijuana taxation
revenue and ri sk.

COWM SSI ONER HLADI CK responded that municipalities will have at
| east half of the risk fromthe regulations that they m ght do.

CHAIR STOLTZE stated that the initiative sponsors are adamant
about bout i que- growers and smal | er oper ati ons wi t hin
nei ghbor hoods having an inherent right to privacy. He noted that
the Attorney Ceneral's office and realtors have said the public
has a right to know. He asked where the Administration stands on
t he privacy of operations issue.

COWMM SSI ON HLADI CK answered that he is not aware of the right to
privacy issue.

9:50: 28 AM

CYNTHI A FRANKLIN, Director, Alcoholic Beverage Control (ABC)
Boar d, Depart ment of Commer ce, Communi ty, and Economic
Devel opnent, Anchorage, Al aska, answered that the ABC Board w ||
follow the sane schenme as alcohol licensing where all 1licenses

are publically noticed. She specified that the public is nmade
aware of where an establishnment is proposed to be created and
the public has the opportunity for input. She said the ABC Board
anticipates that the sane schenme wll initially be used for
marijuana |icenses. Public input on the process, locality, and
communities know ng exactly where the |icenses exist and being
operated are integral and essential to the process. She asserted
that a regulatory schenme woul d not exist that is secretive.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -16- April 7, 2015



CHAI R STOLTZE asked Conm ssioner Hadick if what M. Franklin
described is the official position of DCCED

COWM SSI ONER HLADI CK answer ed yes.

CHAIR STOLTZE replied that he appreciates the DCCED s position
and noted that the issue pertains to public safety. He pointed
out that DCCED has becone the default agency for all marijuana
guestions. He asked if Comm ssioner Hadick is going to defer

nost of his policy questions to the ABC Board and w Il other
divisions wthin DCCED be involved wth other comerce
guesti ons.

COM SSI ONER HLADI CK answered that issues and regulations wll
be vetted out through a board-process. He surmsed that
regul ation approval wll be done by the designated marijuana
control board.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if Conmm ssioner H adick sees any overall
responsibility in overseeing the board that ultimtely controls
mari j uana.

COWM SSI ONER HLADI CK answered yes. He specified that DCCED wants
to ensure that things are done correctly from a public safety
and health perspective. He said he would have a role in
overseeing and nmaking sure DCCED is neeting the legislation's
i ntent.

CHAI R STOLTZE remarked that he did not expect Ms. Franklin to be
involved with the insurance issue. He asked if insurance would
be an exanple of an issue where a higher |evel comm ssioner or
di rector would be nore invol ved.

9:53:46 AM

COWM SSI ONER HLADI CK answered yes. He specified that DCCED wi |
be nore involved with insurance, banking, and working closely
with the Departnent of Environnmental Conservation (DEC) on
testing issues to neet the legislation's intent.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if Comm ssioner H adick had an opinion if
the marijuana law w il help or hurt.

COWM SSI ONER HLADI CK replied that the marijuana law is here and

DCCED needs to take the next steps to inplenent the initiative's
intent. He remarked that marijuana has been in the black market

SENATE STA COW TTEE -17- April 7, 2015



and now the state wll have the ability to enforce |[egal
mari j uana regul ati ons.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked how DCCED would regulate the marijuana
edi bl es.

9:56:47 AM

COWMWM SSI ONER  HLADI CK  answered that the first step is to
establish a statutory framework with maxinmum flexibility for a
board to deal wth situations that are not yet known. He
remar ked that nobody can predict how nmany growers or what the
interest for marijuana will be. He remarked that DCCED w ||
probably be com ng back to the Legislature in the comng years
to address things that have not been thought about.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked to confirm that Comm ssioner H adick wants
t he maxi num amount of flexibility with a rigid franmework.

COW SSI ONER  HLADI CK specified that oversight is a tension
bet ween policy and regul ati on.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if the commttee can receive at its next
neeting sone suggestions on a policy directive from the
departnment's "top of the food chain.”™ He enphasized that his
statenment is no disrespect towards Ms. Franklin. He continued as
foll ows:

It's probably too nuch of a burden on her to cone up
with a policy and the inplenentation; | think that is
our job as a policy and it is certainly the
Adm nistration's job at the high levels of the food-
chain other than putting it on an agency director to
conme up with all of the solutions. | think we need to
know what the conpass is of the Wal ker adm nistration
on this and be involved in the process and not |ust
say, "Al things point to M. Franklin and don't
bother us with the details.” That's not a request, |
think that 1is the inperative. Mybe |'m speaking
singularly here, but if we don't know at the highest
| evel s what the commtnent to fulfilling our nandates
inthis role are, it's really tough and | hate to just
turn it over to an agency which the Legislature has
expressed a lack of confidence in as recently as just
a couple of years ago.

9:59: 44 AM
SENATOR COGHI LL commented as foll ows:

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 18- April 7, 2015



For us, as we conme into the next |egislative session
the licensing procedure has to be proceeded by the
econonm c factors, the bonding, and the licensing. W
need to have a long conversation with those people who
are going to be handling the noney and who are going
to be undergirding the businesses, because al nost any
business plan that | have ever seen starts with that
risk managenent profile as you cone in; | totally
agree with the Chairman on that and | think we just
need to see sone of those things set out. Even though
we set out regulations for licensing, there's the
consuner public safety, but there is also entering
from a black narket into a |egal market, there needs
to be clarity on that and we just don't have it yet.

SENATOR HUGA NS noted that DCCED becones the |ead agency on the
econonm cs by default if SB 62 or its equivalent does not pass.
He asked what DCCED s actions will be if SB 62 fails to pass.

COWM SSI ONER HLADI CK answered that the ABC Board by default
woul d becone the board and would work at trying to get sone
regul ations in place for next year.

SENATOR HUGGE NS recomended that having DCCED s experts push
information to the Legislature would be nore productive.

COMM SSI ONER HLADI CK replied that he agreed.
10: 02: 11 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if DCCED needs SB 62 or can the
departnment regulate the industry on its own without the bill.

COWMM SSI ONER HLADI CK answer ed t hat DCCED supports the bill.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if DCCED wll be capable of
regulating the industry if SB 62 does not pass.

COW SSI ONER HLADI CK replied that he would rather have SB 62. He
specified that SB 62 gives DCCED good guidelines and a good
starting pl ace.

CHAIR STOLTZE commented that the commttee is left with nore

questions than answers. He noted his appreciation that
Comm ssioner H adick is not |ooking at marijuana regulation with
"rose colored glasses.” He renmarked that Comm ssioner H adick

SENATE STA COW TTEE -19- April 7, 2015



has shown interest in marijuana regulation prior to becom ng
commi ssi oner when he attended the Chiefs of Police Conference.

COW SS| ONER HLADI CK answer ed correct.

CHAI R STOLTZE commented that SB 62 m ght not be the vehicle for
regul ation and noted the bill's commttee assignnents.

SENATOR HUGA NS renmarked that many people hold Comm ssioner
H adick in high regard as a person that nekes things happen. He
opi ned that Conm ssioner Hadick is the right person, especially
if SB 62 fails to pass, and he |ooks forward to working with
hi m

10: 04: 20 AM
CHAIR STOLTZE echoed Senator Huggins' coments. He announced
that SB 62 would be held in comnmttee.

10: 05: 46 AM

There being no further business to conme before the commttee
Chair Stoltze adjourned the Senate State Affairs Standing
Comm ttee hearing at 10:05 a. m

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 20- April 7, 2015



